
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

14 June 2021 
 

TO MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee on 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
in Boston Guildhall, South Square, Boston PE21 6HT 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 

Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Judy Welbourn 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, 

Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie, 
Yvonne Stevens and Chelcei Trafford 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART 1 - PRELIMINARIES 

 

A.   APOLOGIES 
 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of any substitutions. 
 

  

B.   MINUTES                                                                                              (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

To sign the minutes of the last meeting held on the 27 April 2021 
 

C.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Thursday, 17th June 2021. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1   STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023  (Pages 9 - 38) 
 

 A Report by the Assistant Director – Towns Funds 

 
2   VERBAL UPDATE ON THE MEMBER WORKING GROUP - FLY TIPPING  

 

 A verbal report by Councillor Judith Welbourn 

 
3   WORK PROGRAMME                                                                      (Pages 39 - 46) 

 

 Standing Item. 
(For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone Number 01205 
314226.    email:  karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 
This meeting will be streamed live on YouTube.  



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

27 April 2021 

Present: Councillor Judith Skinner (Chairman), Councillor Judy Welbourn (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Peter Bedford, Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie and 
Chelcei Trafford 
 
In attendance: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader and Portfolio Holder  
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Regulation, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 
Services, Transformation & Governance Manager, Community Safety Manager and 
Democratic Services Officer 
 
78   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled for Cllrs Alison Austin, David Brown, Anton Dani and 
Aaron Spencer with no substitute members attending. 
 
79   MINUTES 

 
Committee agreed the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 5th January 2021. 
 
80   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were recorded 
 
81   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No public questions. 
 
82   MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - 2021 TO 2024 

 
Prior to presenting the report the Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 
Services invited the portfolio holder to address the meeting.  The portfolio holder 
advised he would comment at the end of the presentation. 
 
The Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services presented the report 
advising that in January 2021 the Councillor Development Group had indicated that they 
would like the authority to work towards the Charter again. A key requirement of 
establishing the Charter was to have a member learning development strategy in place.  
The strategy had been based on a previous strategy and it formed part of the evidence 
base going forward to the LGA in 2022.  The strategy had already been tabled through 
the Councillor Development Group, with a number of members on the committee 
already having had input into it, but members were asked if there were any further 
comments to take forward. 
 
Opening the meeting to the committee members all supported the strategy, stating it 
was a positive document and those who had been in attendance at the Councillor 
Development meeting, agreed it had been thoroughly debated.    

Page 1

Agenda Item A.



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 
 

The Chairman asked if it would be possible to record member’s attendance at training 
sessions within their profiles on the website for public information. 
The Assistant-Director noted that he would take advice on the possibility of the training 
being recorded on members’ individual profiles on the website 
 
The Portfolio Holder agreed the suggestion stating that training needed to be analysed 
and recording of the attendance would help all parties and stated that he felt the strategy 
would greatly assist all members.  
 
To Do:   
JG:    To address the request for member training to be recorded on the website and an   
          update on this to be tabled back to the committee at its next meeting. 
CA:   To update committee at the next meeting on the 22nd June 2021. 
 
83   WORK PROGRAMME INCLUDING Q3 PERFORMANCE. 

 
The Transformation Manager presented the Q3 performance confirming it was up until 
the end of December 2020 and was similar to the Q2 report with restrictions still in place 
during the reporting time.  
Some areas had performed really well dispute the circumstances including planning 
services and in supporting local businesses albeit in a different way to the norm. 
Other areas clearly reflected the impact of the restrictions.  Collectable business rates 
had been severely impacted by the various reliefs awarded to support businesses during 
lockdown.   Car parking income and the markets income had been heavily impacted due 
to changes in policy and circumstances.   
 
Household waste was within tolerance, however residual waste per household was 
worse than target due to people working / being at home more.   
Concluding the Transformation Manager advised that there had been a  positive with the 
Guildhall which had gone through Quality Assurance and had had not only passed, but 
had increased their score due to a new pre booking system and allowing better 
accessibility and improved staffing arrangements. 
 
Member comments included appreciation of the provision of the gross and net figures 
for the business rates, with a request for confirmation in respect of the differential 
between them relating to what the Government use for their calculations.  The 
Transformation Manager confirmed she would source the information and forward to 
members after the meeting.   
 
A number of members tabled their recognition and appreciation of the increasing volume 
of work undertaken by the fly tipping team.  
Noting that an update on the member working group for Fly Tipping was on the agenda, 
a member suggested that a joint scrutiny meeting or task and finish review on 
completion of the member working group, be held to look at the correlation between fly 
tipping and HMO’s.  Officers’ from both service areas – housing and waste disposal, to 
be included along with representation of the Landlords Forum with a view to looking to 
address the ongoing increasing issues of fly tipping / black bags and furniture items, 
clearly resulting from over-crowded houses.  Options to include looking at changes in 
licensing of HMO’s. 
The Assistant Director – Regulation (Lead Officer for the committee) suggested that the 
idea should be relayed to the member-working group in the first instance. 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 

 

 
A member asked if it would be possible to see comparative percentage rates of fly 
tipping during the period of weekly collection of green bins with a view to looking to 
reverting to weekly collections.  On being advised that  it had been many years since 
such collections took place and that working methods and policies were very different 
now, as such any comparison would not be comparative, the member re phrased the 
question and asked if a significant reduction in fly tipping would occur should the 
collection of green bins revert to weekly.   The Lead Officer re stated that the cost 
implications of such a piece of work and the changes required to policy would require a 
clear steer from all members and the executive.  
   
One suggestion tabled was that the households with lots of side waste have an 
additional bin but issues of siting the bin at such premises could provide difficult.  A 
member stated that if used correctly, the provision of the bins now provided gave more 
capacity for waste than ever before.  The blue bins having been successful for many 
years and the recent addition of the purple bins gave residents even greater 
management of their waste, if they did so correctly.  One ongoing problem with disposal 
of large boxes etc. was residents failed to break them down prior to putting them in the 
bin resulting in the bins not being used to their maximum capacity. 
 
A further suggestion referenced the opening hours and existing policy of the Recycling 
centre, requesting that they be reviewed, with a view to extending the opening hours 
and to accommodate trailers and vans that were the preferred vehicle of fly tippers. If 
the people with these vehicles who collect the waste were able to go and drop it at the 
recycling centre, it would certainly stop many of the fly tips outside of the town, and 
maybe some within the town. 
The Lead Officer for the committee suggested that the idea be relayed to the member-
working group in the first instance. 
 
Referencing the working programme for 20/22 the Lead Officer for the committee 
addressed the next meeting on the 22 June 2021.   
Members were advised that a request tabled previously for an update on the provision of 
toilets (both Council owned and private owned but available for public use) would be on 
the agenda.  Madam Chairman had requested that the Recovery Plan recently taken 
through Cabinet should come to committee and would be on the June agenda.  An 
update on the member-working group for fly tipping would now be a standing item on all 
meetings until its conclusion at which point the final report by the group would be tabled 
back through the parent committee.  
 
To Do: 
  
SR:  To provide information in respect of the differential between the net    and gross 
figures in respect of the business rates. 
 
KR:  To relay the two suggestions above in respect of Fly Tipping to the lead officer for 
the member-working group for fly tipping. 
 
CA:   To confirm who will table the Recovery Plan at the next meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 
 

 
84   REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON'S ECONOMY TASK AND 

FINISH GROUP - UPDATE ON AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Prior to presenting the report the Assistant Director – Regulation invited the portfolio 
holder to comment.   
The portfolio holder declined at that point and advised he would comment at the end of 
the presentation if needed.  
 
The Assistant Director – Regulation provided members with a brief overview of how the 
13 recommendations had evolved following a very comprehensive task and finish group 
review that had involved a number of partners and agencies.  The parent committee 
initially agreed and approved all the recommendations.   
The report thereafter was tabled at Cabinet who agreed and approved 
recommendations 1 through to 11 with recommendations 12 and 13 scheduled for 
approval by BTAC. 
 
Addressing the recommendations the Assistant Director – Regulation advised that 
recommendations 1,2,3,4 and 6 all related to legislative change and they had been 
forwarded, undercover of a letter from the Leader of the Council to the Home Secretary 
for consideration and review.  The response from the Home Secretary being included 
within the agenda papers. 
Recommendation 5 sought greater input by the 11 responsible consultees to licensing 
applications and the Leader of the Council had written to each consultee.  No response 
from any consultee had been received. 
 
Recommendation 7 sought greater input into licensing applications by the Parish 
Councils.  The Leader of the Council had written to each Parish Council encouraging 
them to scrutinise licensing applications within their respective Parish.  
 
Recommendation 8 sought to promote the work of Boston CAP (Community Alcohol 
Partnership).  Inspector Fran Harrod had included a comprehensive response, which set 
out good work already undertaken by the CAP and the work they were intent on 
continuing to take forward. 
 
Recommendation 9 related to performance reporting of Anti-Social Behaviour requesting 
comparative report be produced for Boston against Horncastle and Skegness.  The 
recommendation had already been taken forward and was produced quarterly and 
available on the website. 
 
Recommendation 10 sought notification on the Council’s website of a general police 
contact link for reporting of non-urgent crime.  This had been taken forward and the 
details were on the website. 
 
Recommendation 11 sought discussion to take place between the Police and Council to 
agree a way forward in facilitating public meetings.   The meetings were now taking 
place quarterly hosted by the Police and supported by the Council’s Community Safety 
manager. 
 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 

 

Recommendations 12 and 13 related to Central Park and scheduled for consideration by 
BTAC on the 20 May 2021.  The decisions of BTAC to be updated at the next scheduled 
meeting of Environment and Performance committee on the 22 June 2021. 
 
Committee deliberation followed which included: 
 
A number of members voiced disappointment at the response from the Home Secretary 
with concern that Government had completely ignored the submissions.  Members 
suggested that the Leader of the Council take the matter further with the local Member 
of Parliament to see if he could gain a more favourable response from the Home Office.  
The Leader of the Council confirmed he would be taking the matter further. 
 
One key finding from the review, which the Police had fully supported, was the need for 
licensing of establishments that sold tobacco but not alcohol.  
Whilst the Police had the right to enter an establishment with an alcohol licence that sold 
tobacco, they had no such right with a shop that did not sell alcohol.  Locally illicit 
tobacco sales were a big problem, both as a front to other illegal trading and in 
significant lost revenue to the exchequer.  
 
Madam Chairman advised she had watched the recent virtual public meeting hosted by 
the Police and stated she found it to be very informative and well run with live questions 
asked via the CHAT facility.  The Chairman invited the Community Safety Officer, who 
had attended the meeting, to comment and he advised that whilst it had only been the 
second meeting, the feedback and input from the public was assisting in the priorities of 
the Police whilst being informative to the public.  Occasionally it was not possible to 
answer a specific question at a meeting with the reply provided after.  However, overall 
the meetings were working very well. 
  
RECOMMEDATION: 
 
Committee agreed its’ receipt of the update report, noting completion of the Task and 
Finish Group: Regulating and Safeguarding Boston’s Economy, recommendations 1 to 
11; and agreed to a further update being brought before this Committee when a 
response to recommendation 12 and 13 has been determined by Boston Town Area 
Committee (BTAC). 
 
Committee further agreed a delegation to the Assistant Director – Regulation and the 
Leader of the Council to take forward the initial response from the Home Secretary, to 
the Local Member of Parliament. 
 
 
To Do:    
 
CA:     To update committee at its next meeting on the 22 June 2021 on the             
           outcome of the decision made by BTAC in respect of recommendations 12 and  
           13. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 
 

 
85   VERBAL UPDATE MEMBER WORKING GROUP - FLY TIPPING. 

 
Councillor Judy Welbourn presented the update and advised that the group had held 
discussions relating to CCTV cameras and mobile observation units with further 
information required.  The group had also discussed the new waste bins and education 
for households in how to use them.  Most homes now had the new bins.   
 
The issue of registered waste carriers fly tipping had also been discussed and the 
officers were looking further into the problem  The work of the ‘wombles’ had been 
debated and commended, with particular praise on how quickly fly tips were cleared 
following their initial reporting.  
 
On a personal note Cllr Welbourn voiced support of the earlier suggestion for a joint 
meeting to discuss the HMO’s and fly tips. 
 
A further member of the group confirmed that it had considered the closure of the LLC 
recycling centre, questioning if an option would be to have other sites within the Boston 
area, for people to take their recycling goods to, or even create another permanent site.  
Furthermore, the Lead Officer on the group was looking at the ongoing problems with 
bins parked on pavements causing problems.  The group had noted that whilst the 
Government insisted on fewer collections and more recycling. As a town, Boston had 
more household waste than it had ever had and it was a big issue.    
Referencing the suggestion of a joint meeting, a member confirmed that the housing and 
waste collection teams did work together in respect of houses with large side waste, 
which is one of the biggest problems in Boston with much of the household waste being 
recyclable. 
 
There is no recommendation within the update report.  However, the following 
comments were tabled for consideration of the working group. 
 

1. That the Member Working Group report back to the parent committee at each 
future meeting until completion of their final report which will come back through 
the committee. 
 

2. That the group consider the following suggestions made by the parent committee: 
 
That a joint scrutiny meeting be convened, or a task and finish review be 
undertaken, on completion of the member working group, to look at the 
correlation between fly tipping and HMO’s.  Officers’ from both service areas – 
housing and waste disposal, to be included along with representation of the 
Landlords Forum with a view to looking to address the ongoing increasing issues 
of fly tipping / black bags and furniture items, clearly resulting from over-crowded 
houses.  Options to include looking at changes in licensing of HMO’s.    It is 
within the remit of the working group to engage with housing. 
 

That the opening hours and existing policy of the recycling centre be reviewed.  To 
include a view to extending the opening hours and to accommodate trailers and vans 
which were the preferred vehicle of fly tippers. If the people with these vehicles who 
collect the waste were able to go and drop it at the recycling centre, it would certainly 
stop many of the fly tips outside of the town, and maybe some within the town.   

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
27 April 2021 

 

 
Whilst the Policy for the recycling centre was restrictive, there had been movement at 
the site brought about by the pressure of BBC Councillors and changes to the policy had 
taken place.  The more pressure the group and Council was able to put on LCC, the 
more change of change. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 7.35 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: ENVIRNOMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 JUNE 2021 

SUBJECT: STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023  

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL & EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

KEY DECISION:  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

YES 

COUNCILLOR NOBLE & COUNCILLOR SKINNER (BBC) 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

The report has been prepared by The Deputy Chief Executive 

(Strategy) in conjunction with Assistant Directors, as set out in the 

attachment. 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report has been tabled to committee at the request of Madam Chairman Councillor Judith 

Skinner following it having been taken through Cabinet in March 2021.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Members of the committee consider and question the content of the Recovery Plan. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To enable scrutiny of the Recovery Plan. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



REPORT 

The Recovery Plan is focused on delivering activities and things that are tangible and useful to local 
people and businesses. Progress will be measured and reported to Cabinet and Executive Board 
every 6 months. That will help us understand what is working and what is not, solve problems, 
identify the potential to implement additional or improved initiatives and to ensure resources 
provided to us by Government are spent to good effect on activities that produce the greatest 
benefit. It is anticipated the first review will be reported to the Cabinet and Executive Board in 
September 2021. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
All content is contained in the attached report and not summarised in this covering report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Only those considered in the attached report. 
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

NONE 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

CONSULTATION 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

  

Page 10



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A 

APPENDIX B 

 
 

APPENDIX C 

REPORT TO CABINET 31 MARCH 2021 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL & EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 

CABINET MINUTES 31 MARCH 2021 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Tim Leader, Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) 

Signed off by: Rob Barlow, Chief Executive 

Approved for publication: Corporate Management Team 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 31ST MARCH 2021 

SUBJECT: STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023  

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL & EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

KEY DECISION:  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

YES 

COUNCILLOR NOBLE & COUNCILLOR SKINNER (BBC) 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

The report has been prepared by The Deputy Chief Executive 

(Strategy) in conjunction with Assistant Directors, as set out in the 

attachment. 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this Recovery Plan is to set out a range of practical measures calculated to help 

the people and businesses of Boston and East Lindsey bounce back from the harm that has been 

caused to the areas’ economies and civil society by the “lockdowns” imposed on local 

businesses and communities to contain Covid19. 

Note:  All content is contained in the attached report and not summarised in this covering 

report.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 That Cabinet approves the recovery plan and authorises its implementation - full details 

of what is proposed can be found in the Recovery Plan at Appendix A. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Over the next 12 – 24 months the pursuit of these goals will support the recovery of our 

communities and businesses. 

APPENDIX A 

Page 13



 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing. 

 

REPORT 

The Recovery Plan is focused on delivering activities and things that are tangible and useful to local 
people and businesses. Progress will be measured and reported to Cabinet and Executive Board 
every 6 months. That will help us understand what is working and what is not, solve problems, 
identify the potential to implement additional or improved initiatives and to ensure resources 
provided to us by Government are spent to good effect on activities that produce the greatest 
benefit. It is anticipated the first review will be reported to the Cabinet and Executive Board in 
September 2021. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
All content is contained in the attached report and not summarised in this covering report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Only those considered in the attached report. 
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

NONE 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

CONSULTATION 

Only those considered in the attached report. 

 

  Page 14



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL & EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Tim Leader, Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) 

Signed off by: Rob Barlow, Chief Executive 

Approved for publication: Corporate Management Team 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 

2021-2023 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL &  

EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Page 17



2 
 

Introduction  

1. The purpose of this Recovery Plan is to set out a range of practical measures 

calculated to help the people and businesses of Boston and East Lindsey bounce 

back from the harm that has been caused to the areas’ economies and civil society 

by the “lockdowns” imposed on local businesses and communities to contain 

Covid19.  

2. The Plan is intentionally concise; what is required is urgent action rather than 

words. Therefore, it focuses on two things: - 

I. Identifying work which we are already committed to and showing how that will 

assist recovery; 

II. Highlighting opportunities for additional carefully targeted interventions to 

address issues of particular concern and which are likely to have a significant 

beneficial impact on those they are intended to assist.  

 

3. Some additional actions can be funded immediately without creating pressure for 

additional funding by utilising Government grants to mitigate the impact of lockdown; 

by tapping into existing reserves earmarked for strengthening the social and 

economic resilience and cohesion of the areas’ communities; and by bending and 

potentially enhancing existing programmes of work. As the year progresses it is 

possible that further grants will be made available by central government and 

underspends identified. In that event, the Plan will enable the Councils to take action 

quickly by pulling initiatives from a “drop down menu”, rather than delaying 

interventions as they are worked up from scratch. The Plan thus sits alongside each 

Council’s budget to signal how local government and its partners are, and will 

continue, to stand alongside local people and businesses to boost their prosperity 

and well-being. 

Page 18



3 
 

 

 

How has Covid19 impacted on the area of the Strategic Alliance? 

4. The Strategic Alliance extends across the whole area of Boston Borough Council 

and East Lindsey District Council.  Prior to the pandemic each council was working 

hard to address significant levels of economic and social deprivation which belie the 

attractive character of its historic market towns and the outstanding natural beauty of 

the Lincolnshire Wolds and the heritage coast. Those difficulties have been 

recognised by the Government’s decision to designate Boston, Skegness and 

Mablethorpe as Towns Fund towns; up to £75 million worth of investment has been 

earmarked to tackle the deep-rooted social deprivation in each town, where some 

wards are amongst the 10 per cent most deprived in the country.  

 

5. The problems that need to be tackled stem from a narrow employment base that 

is over-dependent on seasonal, part time, low skilled and low paid work, especially in 

the tourism, leisure, agricultural and food processing sectors. Poor road and rail 

communications with the rest of the East Midlands, the east of England and the rest 

Page 19



4 
 

of the UK has made it difficult to diversify and extend the area’s economic base. A 

number of exciting initiatives are being pursued around the port of Boston and at the 

Skegness Gateway but will take some years to bear fruit. The lack of significant 

numbers of varied and well-paid employment opportunities is reflected by relatively 

low and insecure household incomes; poor housing conditions and poor health. 

Opportunities for young people are limited by those factors and exacerbated by a 

relatively poor secondary and tertiary education provision. Tackling these problems 

has been made more difficult by very high levels of in-migration from parts of the 

European Union in recent years. Whilst migrants have undoubtedly helped the local 

economy to grow and introduced additional colour and diversity to our towns, their 

numbers and particular needs also pose challenges to service delivery, which must 

be tailored so that what we do is accessible and meets the needs of all those who 

rely on us. 

 

6. The Councils and their partners are working hard to address these issues. 

However, the magnitude of the task is enormous, and has been made far more 

challenging in the short term by Covid19. The crisis that must now be grappled with 

is rooted in the areas’ substantial reliance on tourism, leisure, and hospitality 

businesses, which have suffered extended lockdowns and loss of income since 

March 2020. Anecdotal information and bespoke survey work carried out on behalf 

of East Lindsey District Council indicates those sectors have suffered substantial job 

losses, albeit the full impact of the pandemic cannot be gauged accurately at this 

stage because many people have been furloughed. The bottom line is that East 

Lindsey’s employment rate is substantially below that for Lincolnshire, 

Nottinghamshire and Rutland districts, as is the employment rate for workers 

suffering from a disability, and more elderly workers. The claimant count is rising 

Page 20



5 
 

across all groups, notably the young, who have been hard hit by the loss of seasonal 

employment opportunities. The situation is serious and is likely to deteriorate further 

as lock-down continues. 

 

7. The market towns have also been hard hit. Vacancies have increased 

significantly, giving the high streets a rather shabby and unkempt appearance. It is 

far from clear whether retailing will recover quickly or at all without a concerted effort 

to boost their attractiveness as destinations with a particular character and offer. 

8. The social implications of Covid19 are equally stark. Young people have not just 

lost employment opportunities and lowered aspirations. Evidence is also emerging of 

child exploitation and an urgent need for enhanced safeguarding measures. The 

pandemic has also placed a significant financial strain on local communities. Those 

on low wages tend not to have savings to buffer them through a loss of income, 

especially when they are required to self-isolate. Overall, the pandemic has tended 

to highlight levels of acute deprivation in East Lindsey and parts of Boston. Pre-

Covid health and well-being inequalities have intensified because of the 

interdependence of each on the level of economic activity. The response of the 

Councils and their partners has therefore been to develop initiatives calculated to 

better safeguard the young and improve their access to employment; provide advice 

and financial assistance to the least well off; and address health inequalities. 

Page 21



6 
 

 

How have the councils responded to Covid19? 

9. The response to Covid19 has focused on providing financial assistance to those 

businesses which have been hardest hit by lock-down, and giving assistance to the 

most vulnerable, especially the elderly and those who do not enjoy the best of 

health. 

 

Assistance to business 

10. During the first national lockdown, East Lindsey’s Grants Team supported 4,827 

local businesses with grant payments of £48,901,000 through the Small Business 

Grant Fund/Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant and the Local Authority 

Discretionary Grant Fund. The team responded to 2,196 enquires during this period, 

sign-posting businesses to grant and business support. Since November 2020, the 

Council has responded to the second and third national lockdowns and “tier 

restrictions” by distributing 9,898 business grants with a total value of 

£20,679,221.59. Over this period, the team responded to 1,852 direct enquiries for 

assistance. Learning from the experience gained during the first lockdown, the 

Grants Team have introduced assurance compliant application processes which 

have facilitated the ‘automation’ of grant payments – wherever possible, this has 

ensured swift payment of business grants to businesses, and help many survive 

these turbulent and difficult times. In response to the first National Lockdown, Boston 

Borough Council’s Grants Team supported 1,364 local businesses with grant 

payments of £15,248,500 (via both the Small Business Grant Fund/Retail, Hospitality 

Page 22



7 
 

and Leisure Grant and the Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund). From 

November 2020 onwards (to 15/02/21) in response to National Lockdowns (2 and 3) 

and Tier restrictions, the Grants Team have distributed 2,187 business grants with a 

total value of £4,430,088.38. Learning from the experience gained during the first 

lockdown, the Grants Team have introduced assurance compliant application 

processes which have facilitated the ‘automation’ of grant payments – this has 

ensured swift payment (where possible) of business grants to businesses in the 

borough of Boston to support on-going business survival. 

Helping the most vulnerable 

11. The councils have devised and implemented a wide range of initiatives to help 

the most vulnerable stay healthy through Covid19. 

 

12. Those without a home were placed at particular peril. Recognising that danger, 

the councils have focused on reducing the numbers of people sleeping rough by 

providing them with clean and warm temporary accommodation. They have also 

sought to address this issue in the longer term by securing £1m of Homes England 

funding across the two areas to work in partnership others to create 16 additional 

units of accommodation to provide a move on option for rough sleepers. This will be 

available for use by April 2021. 

13. Covid19 has creates great difficulties for the less well-off, who are unable to work 

when they are required to self-isolate. The councils have tackled that problem by 

delivering the government’s “test and trace self-isolation support payment scheme”. 

 To date more than £172,000 has been paid out to more than 345 Boston and East 

Lindsey residents to help them to self-isolate safely. We have also worked closely 

with a wide range of partners to identify and help people through crises by 

signposting and referring them to specialist support for debt, mental health, and 

other problems.  In a similar vein, as part of “Wellbeing Lincs”, since March 2020 we 

Page 23



8 
 

have helped more than 7,000 people who are classed as vulnerable or clinically 

extremely vulnerable access food, prescriptions and other essential items and 

services.  

 

14. Finally, the councils have delivered an enormously success community testing 

programme in Boston to help hard to reach groups access rapid testing for Covid19. 

This exercise placed great stress on thinking creatively to ensure we communicate 

and engage effectively with the whole of the community, so that we learn how to 

discover and respond to different needs. The work we have done is recognised as 

good practice by the Department for Health and Social Care and has been published 

as an exemplar by the Local Government Association. 

 

15. Overall, a great deal has been done. However, the effects of the pandemic will 

be felt for many months even after lock-down has ended and we reap the benefits of 

the mass vaccination programme. That leads naturally to the question, how will the 

councils help businesses and the vulnerable through the coming difficult months as 

the country slowly returns to normality? 

Page 24



9 
 

Existing plans and programmes  

16. Our Corporate Plans place priority on boosting economic growth and prosperity 

and helping the vulnerable. Over the next 12 – 24 months the pursuit of these goals 

will support the recovery of our communities and businesses. Full details of what is 

proposed can be found in the Plans and the associated delivery documents and will 

not be repeated here. Instead, a flavour of the powerful impact of planned 

interventions can be obtained from the following examples: 

17. Skegness Gateway: a private sector led new sustainable community in the 

south east quadrant of Skegness, delivering up to 1,000 new homes; extensive 

employment uses, shops and local services, parks, and open space. The scheme 

will be anchored around a new Further Education College developed in partnership 

with the Grimsby Institute to deliver training and education up to degree level and 

providing an opportunity for shared use of leisure facilities with the local community. 

The growth of the town will help to develop and sustain an “all year round” economy, 

delivering more full time and skilled better paid jobs for local people. 

 

18. PE21: a mixed public-private sector initiative to regenerate a run-down area of 

the town. Highlights include the provision of a new leisure centre; a health-hub which 

combines existing doctors’ surgeries and outpatients’ facilities from Boston’s Pilgrim 

hospital; new housing; riverside cafes and restaurants; and improved retail 

frontages, set within a parkland framework. 

19. Boston Port and Food Town: an initiative to develop and grow the port of 

Boston and develop its potential to become a leading hub for the import and export 

Page 25



10 
 

of food, coupled with support for inward investment and indigenous growth in the 

food processing and manufacturing sector. 

 

20. Regeneration of Mablethorpe: The development of a centre of excellence for 

future living, to deliver a full range of integrated health services tackling problems 

associated with old age, obesity, and deprivation. The focus on health will be 

boosted by the development of a new leisure centre, which will provide greater 

opportunities for participating in sport and active leisure pursuits. We will also 

regenerate the Colonnades at Sutton on Sea to develop a landmark, mixed use, 

leisure, and tourist facility as part of a wider strategy to improve the attractiveness of 

our market towns and coastal resorts. 

 

 

21. House building:  In 2021 the East Lindsey Council’s development company will 

deliver the first of many new homes, providing top quality market and affordable 

housing, regenerating sites which have previously stalled and on vacant and 

underused brown field land. 

Page 26



11 
 

 

22. Vital and viable market towns: In 2021 the councils will carry out a 

comprehensive programme of environmental improvements, digital marketing, and 

events to maintain the distinctive character and attractiveness of the market towns 

as retail centres and popular tourist destinations. 

23. The implementation of a Health and Well-being strategy: In addition to the 

initiatives that have been described, we will deliver an enhanced Well-being Service 

with partners, including the County and the NHS to strengthen preventative health 

care; help people live and age well; ensure all the services we offer are “age friendly” 

and take targeted action to improve the lives and living standards of neighbourhoods 

that exhibit the greatest needs. 

 

FURTHER OPPORTUNITIES TO PROVIDE SUPPORT TO OUR COMMUNITIES 

IN THE NEXT 24 MONTHS  

24. Taking account of the particular roles and responsibilities allotted to the councils 

by Parliament and the Government, and having regard to the impact of Covid19 on 

our communities and local businesses, there is potential to provide more support to 

communities through a range of short term, practical projects and initiatives on our 

own and with our partners, which we have grouped under the following headings:-  

25. Community health and wellbeing – with a particular focus on the needs of 

young people and providing support to all those who are vulnerable and suffer 

significant disadvantage, especially ill health. 

26. Environmental improvements: to help create the conditions that will encourage 

economic recovery, especially in tourist resorts and the market towns of Boston, 

Alford, Spilsby, Louth, Horncastle and Wainfleet. 

Page 27



12 
 

27. Direct and indirect assistance to local businesses: to help stimulate demand 

for their goods and services, boost start-ups, avoid closures and the take up and 

retention of labour. 

Identifying potential initiatives 

The following initiatives will be scoped and evaluated: - 

28. Boosting employment opportunities, especially for the young 

 The councils’ apprenticeship levy could be boosted by additional contributions 

from qualifying government grants and allocated on a carefully targeted basis 

(young people and older people, delivering apprenticeships and “returnee-

ships”). This kind of initiative has been modelled successfully in Manchester 

and could be replicated and tailored to meet the needs of the Alliance’s area.  

 

 In East Lindsey a levy-based initiative could be boosted by allocating part of 

the ‘one off deprivation budget’ to develop a bespoke coastal apprenticeship / 

returnee-ship scheme in places and sectors hardest hit by Covid19 

lockdowns. This would be developed with employers as part of a recovery 

package. The Council is well placed to develop this kind of initiative: it is 

recognised as an ‘Age Friendly’ community leader and is a key stakeholder in 

the National Centre for Ageing Better.   

 

 The Councils could work with the Lincolnshire Enterprise Partnership to pilot 

an “employment ready / reskilling programme” for young people and older 

people linked directly to the recovery and diversification of businesses across 

the Alliance area. 

 

 There is an opportunity to relaunch the “Kickstart” scheme with the DWP, 

developing a system of more flexible placements targeted on sectors most 

likely to lead economic recovery.  

 
 

Improving financial well-being 

Page 28



13 
 

29. The councils’ experience during lockdown has been that many people in financial 

difficulty have expressed gratitude and relief for someone having called them to help 

and offer advice with their options to address their bills and financial commitments. 

The Council could formalise and extend this assistance by capacity building and 

commissioning assistance from Citizens Advice Bureau as follows: - 

 Review of the Service Level Agreement with Citizens Advice Lindsey to 

ensure it has a Covid recovery focus within for the next financial year (making 

the most of the existing budget commitment).  

 

 There is the potential to commission (or add into the Service Level Agreement 

with the Citizens Advice Bureau) a ‘Financial First Aid’ service (dedicated staff 

resource) as a direct response to impact of Covid 19 on people’s financial 

wellbeing.   

 
 

 

 

30. Tackling health inequalities 

 Understanding and addressing health and wellbeing impacts of holiday 

caravans being used unlawfully as residential accommodation by less well-off 

and vulnerable households. 

 

 Delivery (in partnership) of the Boston Borough ‘Empowering Healthy 

Communities Programme’ – community engagement focussed on Covid 19 

risk reduction and on take up of initiatives that are necessary for recovery, 

such as vaccination. 

 

Page 29



14 
 

 Developing and expanding the work of the Prosperous Communities Lead 

Officer (working in partnership with Health Colleagues) to tackle systemic 

health inequalities. A key initiative over the next year will be the Diabetes 

Prevention Programme. 

 

 

 

 

Environmental improvements – what could be done? 

31. The market towns and resorts appear down-at- heel, sapping business, and 

consumer confidence, and creating an unwelcoming environment for tourists and 

local people. The object of environmental improvements is to rebuild pride and 

confidence, encourage investment and thereby improve the vitality and viability of 

the main towns. 

 “Big clean” of all market towns led by the Borough and District Councils and 

engaging Town Councils and voluntary groups. Specific actions include: - 

 

- Promoting and expanding the “Community Litter Champions” 

initiative 

- Intensive targeting of fly-tipping in both urban and rural areas 

- Establish an additional crew employed solely on the clearance of fly 

tipping as part of the fly-swat team. This would double the resource 

allocated to this task and enable fly tips to be cleared more quickly. 

Page 30



15 
 

- Deploy the BTAC maintenance team to deliver comprehensive town 

centre improvements through better litter bin provision, signage, 

deep and targeted cleansing, enhanced use of the chewing gum 

and graffiti removal machine, which can be used in well-publicised 

and high profile operations to galvanise public interest and support.   

- Support and expand the capability of the Overt Surveillance Service:  

Enfortis / Optimal Risk will deploy mobile CCTV to fly tip hot spot 

areas of the town and main roads  into town to catch and prosecute 

fly tippers and deter others and repeat offences.   

- Locally administered shopfront grants and shop improvement grants 

and loans to bring vacant premises back into use and encourage” 

living above the shop”.  

- More intensive and high-profile patrolling of town centres by LA 

Support Ltd, targeting litter dropping in the town centre. 

- Increased funding of partnership working with the Princes Trust to 

develop a bespoke “COVID Recovery Public Realm Improvement 

Projects” to enhance amenity areas identified in the town, including 

Custom House Quay, War Memorial, Ingram Memorial and Pilgrim’s 

Patch. 

- Planting of beds and borders, hanging baskets and barrier baskets 

around the town centre, working with the Boston in Bloom team to 

create a colour scheme to enhance the visual attractiveness of the 

town centre. Establish an East Lindsey Britain in Bloom champion to 

establish attractive displays across East Lindsey’s market towns, 

focusing on high streets, entrances to towns and other high-profile 

public areas. 

 

 Targeted acquisition of vacant and under-used premises for redevelopment 

for housing and community uses and “living above the shop”. 

 Work with landlords to encourage “pop-up” uses or window dressing of vacant 

shops pending reletting or redevelopment.  

 Invest in the markets infrastructure and offer incentives to attract new traders. 

Page 31



16 
 

 Develop an additional programme of events, tailored to the particular 

reputation of each place/ market town (e.g. “Tastes of Lincolnshire events 

linked to a new digital marketing platform; food festivals; antiques and craft 

fairs). 

 Identify, enable, and promote more attractive uses of car parks and other 

public spaces on a temporary or permanent basis where they are 

appropriately located, under-used and there is demand e.g. for eating out/ 

café culture, public seating. 

 

 

 

 

 

32. Direct and indirect assistance to local businesses – what could be done? 

 Evidence based action founded on listening to business: Survey business to 

identify opportunities for bespoke interventions, so that local authority action is 

driven by the needs of those who receive it.  

 

 Encourage economic activity and growth through the planning system by 

finessing validation procedures; proactively helping applicants and agents “get 

it right first time” through improved enquiries procedures and developers 

forums; rigorously managing the time taken to determine planning 

applications and by a review of the scheme of delegation to enable more 

applications to be determined by officers unless they are controversial. 

 

Page 32



17 
 

 Encourage start-ups and “grow-ons” in vacant property owned or controlled by 

the councils by discounting and deferring rent and offering cheap and flexible 

accommodation in under-used assets such as Tedder Hall. 

 

 Help to protect existing and distressed businesses that occupy council owned 

property through sympathetic and supportive management of rent arrears. 

 

 Continue to support initiatives to extend the season on the coast coupled with 

grant support to gap fund initiatives that invest in upskilling and increased 

numbers of jobs. 

 

 Swift implementation of a digital marketing tool across the Alliance’s area to 

help the leisure and tourism industry take full advantage of any increase is 

“Staycations”. 

 

 “Buy local” procurement practices where this is consistent with obtaining value 

for money. Particular opportunities arise for supporting local businesses 

through Invest East Lindsey’s house building programme; its redevelopment 

of the Kingfisher Caravan Park; infrastructure projects such as the Horncastle 

Hub, the Skegness Eco-Chalet Park; the Colonnades; new leisure centres; 

and activities associated with the delivery of the Vital and Viable Market 

Towns initiative. 

 

33. The councils’ officers have begun to prepare project plans for these initiatives, 

with a view to ensuring that those accorded priority by councillors may be 

implemented swiftly, subject to the availability of the necessary funding. Those 

project templates that have been completed are annexed as an Appendix to this 

report. Others may be developed and added in consultation with councillors over the 

course of the next 12-24 months. 

Funding 

34. The additional activities that have been identified which are not capable of being 

funded from existing programmes will be funded from a variety of sources. Budget 

holders will draw down uncommitted funds and other funds that become available in-

Page 33



18 
 

year from government or other sources in consultation with the Alliance’s portfolio 

holders to apply to any as yet unfunded projects. 

 
Activity     Sum available  Deadline for 
          spend 
  
 
MHCLG Surge enforcement funding £127,0001   31.3.21 
 
LOEB/ MHCLG Covid outbreak 
prevention, management, and control £400,0002   30.11.21 
 
MHCLG Community Champions 
Programme     £494,8003   N/A  
 
ELDC Deprivation Budget   £100,0004   N/A  
 
Council Tax Hardship Grant5   
Boston BC     £130,000   31.3.22 
ELDC      £280,000   31.3.22 
  
 

 

Vital and viable market towns budget  £ 200,0006     31.3.22 

Additional restrictions grant  £300,0007   31.3.22 

Reopening High Streets Fund  £ 62,8118   31.3.21 

 

Monitoring and review 

35. This Plan generally avoids proposing the delivery of further plans or strategies. 

Instead, it is focused on delivering activities and things that are tangible and useful to 

                                                           
1
 Committed to Covid Advisor Scheme 

2
 £200k committed. Restricted to spend on Environmental Health and associated recovery work where existing 

budgets are or will be exceeded responding to the pandemic 
3
 Fully committed to Empowering Healthy Communities Initiative (see Appendix for project brief) 

4
 Budget fully committed to (a) Improved Financial Wellbeing project and (b) Addressing Health Inequalities – 

residential use of caravans project (£50,000 per project) 
5
 Unallocated as of 11.3.21, but to be applied to projects calculated to provide council tax support and similar 

help to economically vulnerable households affected by the pandemic 
6
 Of which £123,000 is committed to identified projects 

7
 Further guidance awaited from DHCLG on the application of these monies and deadline for spend 

8
 Fully committed to identified projects 

Page 34



19 
 

local people and businesses. Progress will be measured and reported to each 

council’s cabinet every 6 months. That will help us understand what is working and 

what is not, solve problems, identify the potential to implement additional or 

improved initiatives and to ensure resources provided to us by Government are 

spent to good effect on activities that produce the greatest benefit. It is anticipated 

the first review will be reported to the Cabinets in September 2021. 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



EXTRACT FROM CABINET MINUTES OF 31ST MARCH 2021 
 
 
154  STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023 

 

 

DECISION 

 

That the Recovery Plan set out at Appendix A be approved and its 

implementation be authorised. 

Portfolio 

Holders 

and 

Officer 

 

PS/NW/ 

TL 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 
The Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) introduced a report, which presented a Recovery 
Plan prepared in conjunction with Assistant Directors. 
 
The purpose of the Recovery Plan was to set out a range of practical measures calculated 
to help the people and businesses of Boston and East Lindsey to bounce back from the 
harm caused to their economies and civil society by the “lockdowns” imposed on local 
businesses and communities to contain Covid19. 
 

The Recovery Plan was focused on delivering activities and tangible things useful to local 
people and businesses.  Progress would be measured and reported to Cabinet and the 
Executive Board of East Lindsey District Council every 6 months. This would help them 
understand what was working and what was not, solve problems, identify the potential to 
implement additional or improved initiatives and ensure resources provided to the authorities 
by Government were spent to good effect on activities that produced the greatest benefit. It 
was anticipated the first review would be reported to the Cabinet and Executive Board in 
September 2021. 
 

It was recognised that many had suffered financial hardship due to the pandemic and 

lockdown restrictions.  A range of projects were being undertaken in order to help local 

people and businesses to recover from the effects of the pandemic that would also provide 

opportunities for the future. The Visitor Economy Resilience plan was an example.   

 

The main aims of the plan were to boost employment opportunities, particularly for young 

people; tackle financial inequalities; improve financial wellbeing; carry out environmental 

improvements and assist businesses.  Assistant Directors had been asked to identify and 

scope a number of projects and identify the budget to utilise Government funding in order to 

progress them quickly.  The projects specified so far needed further work.  In the meantime, 

Members were asked to agree the principles of the plan and Portfolio Holders were asked to 

assume responsibility, alongside the Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy), to ensure that the 

projects set out in the appendices were developed to an acceptable standard in the next 

four weeks.    

 
The Portfolio Holders welcomed the Recovery Plan and stressed the importance of 
proceeding without delay, accepting the request for assistance.  

APPENDIX C 

Page 37



EXTRACT FROM CABINET MINUTES OF 31ST MARCH 2021 
 
 

 
During debate, the issue of fly tipping was raised, which was a high priority for local people, 
and reference was made to proposed actions to tackle this.   
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance reiterated the Council’s financial constraints and underlined 
the dependence of many of the projects on future government funding. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive (Strategy) agreed, but pointed out that projects might have 
initial costs, but could also provide income streams.  In addition, increased confidence in the 
area and its raised profile, resulting from the success of Boston’s Towns Fund bid, would 
help produce further funding in order to the most of available opportunities and assist with 
bringing schemes to fruition.  The Deputy Chief Executive (Place) strongly supported this 
view and confirmed that increased confidence was already apparent and would encourage 
existing investors and potential external investors to bring forward projects to assist with the 
area’s recovery.   
 
Members were urged to identify environmental schemes and put ideas forward for officers to 
try to progress. 
 
The Leader welcomed the achievement of the Towns Fund bid and the increase in 
collaborative working with businesses and the education sector it had generated.   
 
Councillor Welton referred to the shared ambition of all concerned and the significant 
opportunities available. The more ideas that were put forward, the more chance that projects 
could be worked up using the officers’ professional skills and their commendable ability to 
identify funds.  
 
The Section 151 Officer added that no project would go forward without a full report to 
Members first. 
   

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 
Do nothing. 
 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  
 

Page 38



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REPORT TO: ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 June 2021 

SUBJECT: 

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

Work Programme  

No 

N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: Madam Chairman Councillor Judith Skinner 

WARDS AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 

The work programme is a standing item at all meetings and is particularly important at the 
start of the new Municipal Year, when Members look to populate the programme for the 
full year ahead and beyond. 
 
The work programme for 2021/22 is attached to the report at Appendix A.  Members may 
take the opportunity to put forward potential items for the Committee’s scrutiny for 
discussion at the meeting.  In addition, the current Forward Plan is attached at Appendix B 
to assist with Members’ deliberations. 
 
Quarterly performance monitoring information is not appended to the report on this 
occasion.  The IT & Transformation Manager advises that the information from Quarter 4 
will not be ready before the meeting date and is anticipating little change in that quarter to 
add value to the work programme at this time.  However, the new performance framework 
is being introduced across the Strategic Alliance and the Quarter 1 information, which will 
be reported to the Committee at its September meeting in this new format, will be more 
useful to Members’ consideration of the work programme. 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That Committee members consider the work programme attached at Appendix A and 
consider if any future scrutiny is necessary on any subject identified.   All members may 
request a report on any subject matter pertinent to this committee’s remit directly to the 

 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 3



Chairman or the clerk.  
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The remit of the Committee is the scrutiny of Corporate Priorities CP1 - Prosperity and CP3 
– Place.  Consideration of items in the current Forward Plan for those areas and discussion 
of potential items for scrutiny put forward by Members themselves demonstrates robust 
and proper governance.   
 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications associated with this scrutiny report. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications associated with this scrutiny report. 
 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
No other implications associated with this scrutiny report have been identified. 

 

CONSULTATION 
Corporate Management Team  
 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Work Programme 2021/22 

APPENDIX B Forward Plan from 19th May 2021 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
 

Standing item on each Environment and Performance Committee agenda. 
 
 

Page 40



 

 
 

 

Environment and Performance Committee Work Programme 2021–22 
 

THIS COMMITTEE’S REMIT IS ALIGNED TO COPORATE PRIORITIES:   CP1 PROSPERITY   and   CP3 PLACE 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS REPORT AUTHOR P/FOLIO HOLDER CABINET 

05.01.21 
 

1. Kerbside Twin Stream Recycling initiative* 
2. Progress report on the 9 Climate Change 

recommendations approved by Full Council in January 
2020 and scrutiny of a draft Environment Policy 

3. Quarter 2 Performance /  Work Programme 

Assistant Director - Operations 
Assistant Director - Regulation 

 
 

Standing Item 

Cllr Y Stevens 
Cllr P Skinner 

27.01.2021 

23.02.21 Cancelled due to lack of substantive business  - - - 

27.04.21 
 

1. Member Learning and Development Strategy - 2021 to 
2024 

2. Quarter 3 Performance / Work Programme 
3. Task & Finish Group Recommendations First Review 
4. Verbal update on MWG – Fly Tipping 

 

Assistant Director – Organisation 
and Corporate Services 
Standing Item Chairman 

Assistant Director – Regulation 
Cllr Judy Welbourn 

Cllr P Skinner 
 
“ 
“ 

12.05.2021 

22.06.21 
 
 
 

1. Recovery Plan – update   
2. Update on Member Working Group – Fly Tipping 
3. Work Programme 

Assistant Dir. Economic Growth 
Cllr Judy Welbourn 

Standing Item 

Cllr P Skinner 23.06.21 

 

07.09.21 
 

 

1. Provision of Public Conveniences – Boston  
2. Annual CCTV Report.   update   
3. Annual ASB Report.     update   
4. Update on Member Working Group – Fly Tipping 
5. Work Programme and Q1 Performance 

 

 

Assistant Director - Operations 
Assistant Director – Regulation 
Assistant Director - Regulation 

Cllr Judy Welbourn 
Standing Item 

 

Cllr T Abbott 
Cllr P Skinner 
Cllr P Skinner 

 
08.09.21 

 

26.10.21 
 

 

1. Draft Climate Change Strategy 
2. Climate Change Assembly Arrangements 
3. Update on MWG – Fly Tipping 
4. Work Programme 

 

 

 

Assistant Director – Regulation 
Assistant Director – Regulation 

Cllr J Welbourn 
Standing Item 

 

 

 

Cllr P Skinner  
Cllr P Skinner 

 

 

17.11.21 

APPENDIX A 

P
age 41



 

 
 

 
07.12.21 
 

    
19.01.22 

 
01.02.22 
 

    
09.02.22 

 
22.03.22 
 

    
30.03.22 

 
10.05.22 
 

    
11.05.22 

 
 
 

 

OPTIONS FOR SCRUTINY WORKING - current at issue of agenda 
 

 

Task and Finish Group Review 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication 
 

  

 

Member Working Group 
 

Fly-Tipping Working Group – verbal update at each meeting of the committee. 
 

  

 

Inquiry Session 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication  
 

  

 

All Member Briefings 
 

None scheduled at time of agenda publication  
 

 

P
age 42



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL  

FORWARD PLAN 

19
TH

 MAY 2021 TO 18
TH

 MAY 20212 

The Forward Plan is a forecast of decisions which are expected to be taken by the Cabinet in the next twelve months. 
 
This Plan constitutes 28 day notice as required by virtue of Regulations 5(2) and 9(2) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information (England) Regulations 2012.  
 
The Boston Borough Council definition of a key decision is: 

 A decision which results in the authority incurring expenditure which is, or involves the making of savings which are significant having 

regard to the authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 Be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of the Borough. 

Decisions set out in this Plan will be taken by the Cabinet unless otherwise specified.  All decisions included in this Plan will be taken on the 
basis of a written report and will be published on the Council’s website before the meeting. 
 
Please note that the decision dates are indicative and occasionally subject to change.  
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the 
Plan can be viewed free of charge at the Customer Services Desk, Municipal Building, West Street, Boston, or on the Council’s website, 
www.mybostonuk.com 
 
If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the decisions outlined in the Plan, please submit them in writing to the contact 
officer identified against each decision in the Plan, at least 2 working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. 
 
Agendas, decisions and minutes are published on the Council’s website www.mybostonuk.com 
 
Cabinet Members:  
 
Cllr Paul Skinner (Leader)    Cllr Tracey Abbott  Cllr Martin Griggs  Cllr Yvonne Stevens 
Cllr Nigel Welton (Deputy Leader)  Cllr Richard Austin  Cllr Jonathan Noble  

 

APPENDIX B 

P
age 43

http://www.mybostonuk.com/
http://www.mybostonuk.com/


 

Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

Rough Sleeping Service Delivery  
(July 2021 to April 2022) 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Michelle Howard, 
Assistant Director - 
Housing & 
Wellbeing Tel: 
01507 613216 
michelle.howard@
e-lindsey.gov.uk 

Councillor Martin 
Griggs 

Councillor Grant Scheme - 
Empowering Healthy Communities 
Programme 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Michelle Howard, 
Assistant Director - 
Housing & 
Wellbeing Tel: 
01507 613216 
michelle.howard@
e-lindsey.gov.uk 

Cllr Griggs, Housing & 
Communities 

Quarter 4 Report 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Suzanne Rolfe, 
Transformation & 
Governance 
Manager Tel: 
01205 314265 
suzanne.rolfe@bo
ston.gov.uk, 
Adrian Sibley, 
Section 151 Officer 
Tel: 07393 146721 
adrian.sibley@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 

Councillor Jonathan 
Noble, Councillor Paul 
Skinner 

Transfer of Internal Audit Service 
 

Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Adrian Sibley, 
Section 151 Officer 
Tel: 07393 146721 
adrian.sibley@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 

Councillor Jonathan 
Noble 

P
age 44



Report Title Key / 
Non-Key 

Date Decision 
to be taken 

Rec to 
Council? 

Open or 
Exempt 

Lead Officer Portfolio Holder 

Appointments to Outside Bodies 
 

Non-Key 23 Jun 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic 
Services Manager  
lorraine.bush@bos
ton.gov.uk 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Consideration of Upgrading Case 
Management System 
 

Key 8 Sep 2021 
 

 Fully 
exempt 
 

James Gilbert, 
Assistant Director 
– Organisation and 
Corporate 
Services Tel: 
07799 473035 
james.gilbert@e-
lindsey.gov.uk 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Review of Policy and Procedures 
on the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 
 

Key 8 Sep 2021 
 

 Open 
 

Christian Allen, 
Assistant Director - 
Regulation Tel: 
01205 314350 
christian.allen@bo
ston.gov.uk 

Councillor Paul Skinner 

Levelling Up Fund 
 

Key To be 
confirmed 
 

Yes Open 
 

Michelle Sacks, 
Deputy Chief 
Executive (Place) 
& Monitoring 
Officer Tel: 01205 
314292 
michelle.sacks@b
oston.gov.uk  

Councillor Paul Skinner 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A. MINUTES
	1 STRATEGIC ALLIANCE COVID19 RECOVERY PLAN 2021-2023
	Appendix A.  Report to Cabinet 31 March 2021
	Appendix B.  Recovery Plan
	Appendix C.  Extract from Cabinet Minute 31 March 2021

	3 WORK PROGRAMME
	Work Programme
	(3B) Forward Plan from 19th May 2021


